



City on a Hill Charter Public School

Minutes

August 2019 Board Retreat

Date and Time

Wednesday August 14, 2019 at 9:00 AM

Location

Foley Hoag, 155 Seaport Blvd, Boston, MA 02210

Trustees Present

Callie Slocum, Cara Stillings-Candal, Greg Vasey, Jeff Jablow, Melisa Lemire

Trustees Absent

Alex Valdez, Karin Wall, Lori Stevens

Ex Officio Members Present

Kevin Taylor

Non Voting Members Present

Kevin Taylor

Guests Present

Amber Donell, Andres Tejeda Soto, Aubreah Lynn, Elizabeth Dignan, Estelle Archibold, Jackie Hayes, Jacqueline Bennett (remote), Jenny Bordo, Jordan Lopez, Nadine Abraham, Sarah Griffin, Sonya Pratt

I. Opening Items

A.

Record Attendance and Guests

B. Call the Meeting to Order

Cara Stillings-Candal called a meeting of the board of trustees of City on a Hill Charter Public School to order on Wednesday Aug 14, 2019 at 9:40 AM.

II. Consent Agenda

A. Approve June 2019 Meeting Minutes

Melisa Lemire made a motion to approve minutes from the June 2019 Board Meeting on 06-25-19 June 2019 Board Meeting on 06-25-19.

Greg Vasey seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

B. Approve the SY20 City on a Hill Student Handbook Template

Melisa Lemire made a motion to approve the SY20 Student Handbook template. Greg Vasey seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

The Board asked what changes were made to the student handbook. Sonya Pratt, Chief Schools Officer, discussed the changes that were made. The changes included an overall simplification and streamlining of the handbook to remove extraneous policies or procedures that are no longer relevant.

C. Approve the SY20 City on a Hill Staff Handbook

Melisa Lemire made a motion to approve the SY20 City on a Hill Staff Handbook. Greg Vasey seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

Jackie Hayes, Chief of Staff & General Counsel, presents the updated SY20 City on a Hill Staff Handbook, and highlights changes from the SY19 Handbook including updating policies to comply with current law, in particular, policies related to FMLA and parental leave. Changes were also made to reflect the unionization of our staff in previous years.

D. Approve Delegation of Approval of FY19 Audit to the Finance Committee

Melisa Lemire made a motion to approve the delegation of the FY19 Audit to the Finance Committee.

Greg Vasey seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

E. Vote to Approve Gary Morton and Sarah Griffin as Board Members

Jeff Jablow made a motion to approve Gary Morton and Sarah Griffin as members of the Board of Trustees.

Melisa Lemire seconded the motion.

The board **VOTED** unanimously to approve the motion.

III. Diversity, Inclusion, Citizenship & Equity (DICE) Initiatives at CoaH

A. Diversity, Inclusion, Citizenship & Equity (DICE) Session

Estelle Archibold, Partner of Archibold Consulting Group, introduced herself as facilitator of the Board initial conversation of the work City on a Hill Charter Public Schools is embarking on to operate as an anti-racist, multi-cultural organization. Archibold led the Board through discussion of why City on a Hill and other schools are beginning equity and inclusion work. Board members probed on operationalizing the work, including what programs are going to be rolled out. In response, Jordan Pina, Deputy Chief of Staff, then described the SY20 Diversity, Inclusion, Citizenship, and Equity (DICE) Vision for kicking off City on a Hill Charter Public Schools commitment to the work as proposed by Network Leadership, including professional development, an Equity Task Force, and affinity groups.

IV. SY20 Committee Structure

A. SY20 Committee Structure

The Board reviewed the draft SY20 Committee Structure, as proposed by City on a Hill Staff. Board members indicated their interest for specific Committees, which remain unchanged from SY19. Melisa Lemire, Chair of the Governance Committee, stated that the Committee assignments would be finalized at the upcoming Governance Committee Meeting, and Jordan Pina, Deputy Chief of Staff, would message them to members of the Board.

V. The COAH Effect

A. The COAH Effect

Kevin Taylor, Chief Executive Officer, presented The COAH Effect, which is a staff-created dashboard designed to update the Board on the Network's results - academic and operational. Taylor highlighted trends, including City on a Hill's continued enrollment challenges, recruitment, and academic results. Board members probed on enrollment efforts, including strategy and projections for the rest of the summer, as well as discussing challenges in attracting new staff and timeline for MCAS scores to be released.

B. The COAH Effect 2.0

Jordan Pina, Deputy Chief of Staff, led the Board through an overview of the updated COAH Effect template for SY20. Pina noted changes to goals were made in an effort to make them more aligned with the school's accountability plans, and retain ambitious, yet achievable goals. The Board discussed the updates, focusing on the update of including additional Diversity, Inclusion, Citizenship, and Equity (DICE) goals. Pina then invited

members of the Board to provide any additional feedback on structure before the October 2019 Board of Trustees meeting.

VI. Strategic Plan Discussion

A. Strategic Plan Discussion

Kevin Taylor, Chief Executive Officer, reviewed City on a Hill's Ten-Year Turnaround Plan, which included projected enrollment, philanthropy needs, and milestones to completion. The Board probed on philanthropy strategy and discussed the goal of operating exclusively on the public dollar by school year 2027-28. Additionally, the Board discussed other potential milestones, including consideration of an addition to the Circuit Street building as part of a potential move to combine the two Boston charters and applying to become a regional charter in the greater New Bedford area. Potential changes to the structure of the charters will continue to be explored throughout the coming year for further consideration by the Board.

Jacqueline Bennett arrived.

VII. Closing Items

A. Feedback and Next Steps

Kevin Taylor, Chief Executive Officer, then requested one piece of affirming and once piece of adjusting feedback from all participants in the Retreat, in an effort to continuously improve Board Meetings.

B. Adjourn Meeting

There being no further business to be transacted, and upon motion duly made, seconded and approved, the meeting was adjourned at 2:11 PM.

Respectfully Submitted, Cara Stillings-Candal